
1 
 

1 
Land Use Board 
Minutes of Meeting 
February 20, 2025 
 

  
 MUNICIPAL LAND USE BOARD MINUTES 

BOROUGH OF EMERSON 
February 20, 2025 

 
This meeting of the Emerson Land Use Board was held in the Municipal Building, 2nd Floor 
Conference Room , 146 Linwood Ave, Emerson, NJ.   Chairman Rich Taub  brought the 
meeting to order at 7:31 pm.  In compliance with the Open Public Meeting Act, the Clerk has 
notified The Record and The Ridgewood News of this meeting and notice has been posted 
in the Municipal Building. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Roll Call was taken: 

   Mayor Danielle DiPaola    Present 
Megan Quigley     Absent 
Councilwoman Megan Ciolino   Present 

   Rich Taub      Present 
Jeff Bischoff      Absent 

   Mike Cimino      Present 
   Paul Hulburt      Present    
   Rich Worthington     Present 
   Dominic Aramini     Present 
   Anthony Khiami     Present 
   Eric Ciavaglia     Present 
   Ken Porro, LUB Attorney    Present 
   David Atkinson, LUB Engineer   Present 
   Caroline Reiter, Board Planner   Present 

Marie Shust, Secretary    Present 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES & VOUCHERS: 
 Ms. Shust advised the members that the minutes for the February 6 meeting were not 
available and would be carried to the next meeting 
 Mr. Porro stated the vouchers would be moved to later in the meeting in order to hear the 
application. 
 
APPLICATIONS: 
 436 Old Hook Rd, Block 1101, Lot 5.04   - CARRIED FROM DECEMBER 9, 2024 

Use  variance, Renovate second story for residential,   Reconfigure first floor for 
offices, communal rooms, playrooms, kitchen, library & storage  

 
Since this is a Use variance hearing, Mayor DiPaola and Councilwoman Ciolino recused 
themselves. 
 



2 
 

2 
Land Use Board 
Minutes of Meeting 
February 20, 2025 
 

Mr. Porro asked for a roll call of the members remaining on the dais.  Members identified 
themselves as follows; Mike Cimino, Paul Hulburt, Anthony Khiami, Rich Taub, Rich Worthington, 
Dominick Aramini, and Eric Ciavaglia. 
 
Mr. Porro continued stating this application has been carried from the scheduled special meeting of 
December 9, which could not be held due to conflicts of some of the professionals.  
 
Mark  Madaio, Esq.  of 129 Legion Dr., Bergenfield, NJ,  submitted the signatory receipts of the 
public notices, then addressed the members and briefly recapped the testimony of the previous 
meetings of May 16, June 20, and July 11, 2024.  He then confirmed that there is a qualified 
quorum present before continuing his presentation. 
 
Mr. Porro stated that all testimony would be heard before the public will be heard, to enable full 
and uninterrupted testimony. 
 
Mr. Madaio called Mr. Michael Dipple of L2A Design, 66 Grand Ae. Englewood, NJ to the floor to 
present the upgrades made to the exterior of the premises.     
 
Mr. Dipple stated that the property would be fenced on three sides , the west, the north and the 
east.   The areas between the building and the fences would be landscaped to allow for outdoor 
activities. He continued there were no architectural changes to the building, other than the exterior 
façade re-design as shown in the original drawings.  
 
Mr. Dipple described the changes made to the routing for trucks to enter and turn within the lot, in 
particular for emergency vehicles and sanitation equipment.  The parking layout would be very 
similar to the current configuration, with the addition of curbs and walkways.  He presented two 
drawings, marked Exhibit A1- 2/20 which demonstrates the turning routes to be used. 
 
The sanitation enclosure would be emptied during off hours with a vehicle suitable to the layout of 
the lot. 
 
Mr. Dipple stated that he believed all of the requests from the Engineer have been met. 
 
Mr.; Madaio asked Mr. Dipple if the County had been satisfied with the proposal. Mr. Dipple replied 
yes. 
 
Ms. Elizabeth Dolan of Dolan & Dean, 181 W. High St, Somerville, NJ, with 39 years’ experience,   
was called to testify regarding the traffic study of November 4, 2024. 
 
She stated that studies had been done during peak traffic hours of 8-11 am and 3-6 pm.  When 
asked about the increase in traffic due to this project, Ms. Dolan replied she expected an increase 
of 8 cars during the morning peak hours and 10 during the evening peak hours with highest 
volume between 8 and 9 am and 5 and 6 pm. The medical building at 440 Old Hook Rd, generated 
increased traffic mid-morning  
 



3 
 

3 
Land Use Board 
Minutes of Meeting 
February 20, 2025 
 

She continued that the County road has been very well signed with no left turns at all driveways on 
both the north and south side of the roadway., as well as right turn only signs at the exits. 
 
Mr. Madaio stated the children residing at the project are not permitted to be at home alone at any 
time.  A parent must be present, or the child/children must be in some type of day care, therefore 
the traffic issue would not be a detriment.    There are five lanes of traffic at the intersection, 2 for 
through traffic and one for left turns.   He continued that residents must follow the rules. 
 
Ms. Dolan continued that the area is well marked with crosswalks. Even though the route is longer, 
it is well marked and there are walk/don’t walk signs for each crosswalk.  The County has done a 
good job of upgrading the signals with walk and don’t walk signs including a countdown system. 
 
Mr. Steve Lydon, Planner from Burgis & Associates,  came to the podium and presented his report 
which is marked A-5-2/20,   He stated there were several multi-family units currently in Emerson, 
that do not have outdoor recreation areas, and most of them are on or near railroad crossings.    
Mr. Porro reminded Mr. Lydon that the merits of the application are the responsibility of the 
applicant. 
 
Mr. Lydon continued that the proposed project would provide 8 units on the second floor of the 
building, with the first floor being using for counseling, training and some recreation areas. This 
project would fundamentally be for the good of the public, which the Board should consider in its 
decision by weighing the perceived detriments against the inherent good of the project   
 
The units are not open to the general public, but to those who qualify for the program, who are in 
need of housing, and continued counseling on writing resume’s, applying for a job and job 
interviews, as well as some general skills.    The units would provide housing at reduced costs to 
those qualified and accepted 
 
Mr. Lydon provided a report dated September 11, 2024, which was marked exhibit A-6-2/20, 
highlighting the value of providing this housing.  He said it took legislature decades to define 
Beneficial Use, which includes public good and promotes general welfare. 
 
When asked if Emerson residents would have a priority, he replied no.  He also stated there would 
be no undue impact on the residents or the school system.    There would be no inconvenience 
due to construction as all work would be done within the property and no detriment to the area.  
Mr. Madaio stated that even though not necessary, Family Promise plans to improve the façade of 
the building, as well as the run-off and landscaping.  He continued the board must weigh/balance 
the detrimental impact against the inherent good of providing housing. 
 
Mr. Madaio stated that most of the children in the program opt to attend the school from where 
they originated in order to stay close to their friends.   The school system would not be impacted.   
The residents know that if they do not abide by the rules, they will lose their eligibility to remain in 
the program.  
 



4 
 

4 
Land Use Board 
Minutes of Meeting 
February 20, 2025 
 

Mr. Madaio referred to the defining statement and stressed “Substantial”      Mr. Madaio also 
referred to the possible affordable housing credits due to the “Round 5” obligation.   At this time 
credit eligibility is unknown, but if it should be a resulting factor, Family Promise would be pleased. 
 
Mr. Paul Shackelford approached the podium.  He introduced himself as the President of the 
Board of Trustees with many years’ experience.   Mr. Madaio asked Mr. Shackelford to offer his 
ideas on the program.  
 
Mr. Shackelford told the members that the program addresses the needs of working families who 
for some reason have fallen on hard times.  There is an extensive background check done on each 
applicant before they are accepted.     All residents must work, and no child can be in the building 
without a parent present.    He then asked to show a short video regarding the program, which 
reflects the values of Family Promise.   Due to technical difficulties the video could not be viewed. 
 
Mr. Madaio advised the Board that his presentation was complete. 
 
Mr. Porro asked Mr. Atkinson, the Borough Engineer, if he had any questions.   Mr. Atkinson 
confirmed that concerns had been addresses in responses dated May 24, and revisions dated 
June 4, July 5, September 4, December 4 and Feb,  2025. 
 
However, Mr. Atkinson is concerned in regard to children using the lot of 440 Old Hook Rd and  he 
cannot dismiss the report made by Sgt. Daniel Kalyoussef  in regard to traffic and the safety of the 
children.  He agreed there are crosswalks, but questioned whether they would be used since the 
route involves a longer walk to the west, south and east. 
 
Mr. Madaio replied the residents are aware they must follow the laws and not to jaywalk. 
 
Ms. Reiter asked about the possible credits for affordable housing.  Mr. Lydon replied they were 
not here for affordable housing but for a “use’ variance.    If credits should be a result of the 
approval, then all for the better. 
 
Ms. Reiter replied that normally temporary housing does not qualify for affordable housing.  
 
Ms. Reiter then asked about the report form Sgt Daniel Kalyoussef  Mr. Lydon replied he did not 
believe the Traffic Officer was fully aware of the use and regulations  at the time of his report.  He 
continued that Westwood  has 2–3-bedroom homes along Old Hook Rd, and there are probably 
latch key children residing within,  Family Promise children cannot be on the premises without a 
parent.   Ms. Reiter continued that the Police Dept has strong concerns about the safety of the 
children. 
 
Mr. Porro motioned to open the floor to the public, second by Mr. Taub, all were in favor. 
 
Suzanne Smith, Emerson resident,   wanted to know why Old Hook Rd in Emerson, where 
crossing is very dangerous.  The medical office patients have no reason to cross Old Hook.   She 
finds it hard to believe that this is the best suited location for this project.  As far as residences 



5 
 

5 
Land Use Board 
Minutes of Meeting 
February 20, 2025 
 

along Old Hook Rd,  this matter is in the hands of Emerson, not Westwood where those homes 
are.  In addition, those children would only have to cross Main St, not Old Hook Rd.  With 72 
municipalities in the County, why was Emerson and that location determined to be the best suited 
for this purpose?  As far as impact on the school, she stated as a parent she would definitely opt 
for a school ½ mile away versus Mahwah or Ridgewood for example.  And as residents of 
Emerson, they would be entitled to use the Emerson recreation program, summer camp, etc. since 
they cannot be on the premises without a parent.  It sounds like a good program, but the wrong 
location. 
 
Mr. Baratta  asked why Emerson would allow a non-taxable property when taxes are already high 
in the Borough.  He was also concerned about the 45-mph zone with 5 lanes and children 
crossing.   He stated there is no reason that the project should be approved.  He referred to the 
reasons in the reports by the Fire Dept and Police Dept. 
 
Mr. Kate Stutzel, Emerson resident, works with Family Promise in a Church environment.   She 
would be pleased to have them in Emerson as neighbors.  She continued that Emerson is a family 
town and as such has always been there for their neighbors, and she sees no reason why the 
residents wouldn’t be there for Family Promise residents. 
 
Ms. Germaine Ortiz, Emerson resident and Bergen County Commissioner for 9 years,   spoke to 
the Board stating she supported Family Promise and the work that they do.   She stated the 
families are seeking stability, not charity.  All families have a working member, who for some 
reason have fallen through the cracks and have come upon hard times.   As the mother of two, she 
understands the desire to improve, to have their children in a good school system, with decent 
housing, the ability to learn and grow.    If housing credits are  a result that is a plus. 
 
Keith Smith, Emerson resident, stated that Emerson is very active with charity, but he is concerned 
about the location on Old Hook Rd, which he feels is not appropriate.  Special housing facilities are 
already in place in Emerson, so the Borough is not against the idea of  providing housing.    He 
continued he just does not understand how this location on Old Hook Rd. can be the best suitable 
area for children and this program. 
 
Ms. Abramsen, Emerson resident, stated that Family Promise is a good program but the location is 
not suitable.    Reassessing as a non-taxable building would increase the taxes for the residents of 
Emerson.  Mr. Porro stated that is not an issue.  Ms. Abramsen continued that transient students 
would affect education, as there would be turnover every 6 or so months as the families left the 
program.  She also mentioned the Police report and the safety of the children.   She continued that 
this is the first test-run of multi-family housing units by Family Promise.   The program does not 
really know how this will impact a municipality. She also stated that there would be no credits for 
Affordable Housing for this project. She asked the Board to think of the residents of Emerson when 
making a decision. 
 
Mr. Madaio stated there is no priority for residents of Emerson, just as there is no priority for 
Affordable Housing.  Ms. Abramsen clarified by stating that Affordable Housing is by a lottery 
system and Family  Promise does not use that system. 



6 
 

6 
Land Use Board 
Minutes of Meeting 
February 20, 2025 
 

 
Mrs. Digrazia, Emerson resident, asked who oversees that the kids are not home alone.  Is there 
someone on the premises 24/7?  She also stated that the program is looking for 8 variances for 
this project, and referred to the Police Report, and a recent accident on Old Hook Rd at the 
intersection where Family Promise would be located, which required the jaws of life to remove the 
passengers from the vehicles. 
 
Ms. Suarez, Oradell resident,  stated that Family Promise is an amazing organization helping 
families trying to improve their living conditions.  The kids are transported to schools, after school 
programs and summer camps.  She stated that 1 in 4 families are struggling. These families are 
working to improve their living conditions and looking for a brighter future. They are not seeking 
charity.  She stated there is staff on the premises 24/7. 
 
Mr. Madaio asked Ms. Duggan to report on the Affordable Housing.  Ms. Kate Duggan, 100 Dayton 
St., Woodridge, NJ, stated she had researched and found that temporary housing does not qualify 
at this time. 
 
Ms. Duggan, confirmed that children are not allowed on the premises without a parent.  When 
parents are not at home, arrangements must be made for after school care, camp or other off 
premise sources. 
 
Mr. Porro made a motion to close the floor to the public second was offered by Chairman Taub, all 
were in favor. 
 
Chairman Taub polled the members of the Board 
 
Mr. Hulbert asked the ages of the children, Mr. Madaio replied all ages.   Mr. Hulburt then asked 
about busing.  Ms. Duggan replied depending on the location of the schools and number of 
children, private cars would normally be used. 
 
Mr. Hulburt stated that since the organization could not be licensed, how would any affordable 
housing credit apply.  Mr. Madaio replied this is not an affordable housing application.   Mr. Hulburt 
stated it was a good idea, but the location is wrong.  Mr. Madaio replied that he hears that reply 
often. 
 
Mr. Cimino stated his main concern was the safety of the children.  He reminded everyone that 
children will be children, even with parental guidance.    With the limited recreation area, they will 
seek other areas.   Mr. Madaio replied they are subject to regulations; warnings will be issued and 
then possible removal from the program if the rules are disregarded.  Mr. Cimino continued that 
having been in the Fire Dept for 45 years, he has seen many accidents at that location due to 
illegal turns.  Mr. Madaio replied that possible disregard for traffic regulations should not be a factor 
when considering the application. 
 
Mr. Madaio stated there. are regulations which must be followed and if not followed, termination in 
the program could result. 



7 
 

7 
Land Use Board 
Minutes of Meeting 
February 20, 2025 
 

 
Mr. Taub made a motion to close the floor, second by Mr. Cimino, all were in favor. 
 
Mr. Madaio asked if all the members present were eligible to vote and was told yes.   He continued 
that the Board’s responsibility is to identify the detrimental factors of the application and weigh 
them against the beneficial use.   He stated that the Board’s decision would not only apply to this 
application but to applications which may be presented in the future. Eight residential units in an 
existing commercial building is not  a big change,   Mr. Madaio emphasized there are regulations 
that the residents must follow.  He also stated that Family Promise is willing to accept any 
reasonable reduction of perceived detriment.  Mr. Madaio finished by telling the members to weigh 
the negative and positive criteria in their decision, and that a reason for their vote must be stated 
as they vote. 
 
Mr. Porro outlined the procedure followed for this project application, the documents provided, the 
witnesses that had appeared and the testimony of public in attendance before asking for a motion 
on the application. He told the members that as the Board of Adjustment they do not have to give a 
reason for their vote.  He stated Mr. Madaio was referring to the Planning Board permitted use 
applications rather than this “Use” variance. 
 
Mr. Khiami made a motion to vote on the approval of the application of Family Promise, 436 Old 
Hook Rd, which includes a “Use’ variance, set back variance, parking variance and sign variances.  
Second was offered by Mr. Ciavaglia. 
 
Chairman Taub, Vice Chairman Khiami, Mr. Cimino, Mr. Hulburt, Mr. Worthington, and Mr. Aramini 
voted no. Mr. Ciavaglia voted yes.   The application was denied. 
 
RESOLUTIONS: 
  

NONE 
 
 

 
BOARD BUSINESS: 

   
None 

 
CORRESPONDENCE AND  VOUCERHS. 
 
There was no correspondence. 
 
Ms. Shust read the vouchers: 
 1/27  Shust, Marie  Postage reimbursement   $   11.31 
 1/27  Neglia Engineering 43 Vivian     $ 115.00 
  
 ‘D’ variances 



8 
 

8 
Land Use Board 
Minutes of Meeting 
February 20, 2025 
 

 1/27  Neglia Engineering 436 Old Hook Rd.    $ 815.00 
 9/17/24 T&M Assoc 23 chestnut ‘St.     $ 936.00 
  
      TOTAL     $       $ 1,877.31 
 
Mr. Cimino made a motion to approve the vouchers for payments second was offered by Mr. 
Hulbert.  Chairman Taub, Mr. Cimino, Mr. Hulburt, Mr. Worthington, Mr. Aramini, Mr. Ciavaglia and 
Vice-Chairman Khiami voted to approve payment.    
 
Mayor DiPaola and Councilwoman Ciolino returned to the podium. 
 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
 There was no public in the Chambers so the floor was not opened. 
 
ANY MEMBER: 
None 
 
GOOD AND WELFARE: 
 None 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Since there was no other business to discuss, Chairman Taub asked for a motion to adjourn the 
meeting, which was made by Mayor DiPaola, second was offered by Mr. Hulbert, all were in favor. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:37 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Marie Shust 
Board Secretary 


